# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI

TEQUILA THOMAS

APPELLANT

v.

No. 2008-CA-00315

ANTHONY JONES
PHILADELPHIA INSURANCE COMPANY

APPELLEES

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

ORAL ARGUMENT
IS REQUESTED

SORIE S. TARAWALLY, Esq.

MBN: Box 31027

JACKSON, MS 39286-1027 ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

Tel. (601) 906-0352

Fax. (662) 541-0545

STATEMENT OF FACTS
SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT19-21
ARGUMENT22-30
CONCLUSION30
רבים דור מידי היי מבים עוריי מידי מידי מידי מידי מידי מידי מידי מ

# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI

TEQUILA THOMAS

APPELLANT

ν.

No. 2008-CA-00315

ANTHONY JONES
PHILADELPHIA INSURANCE COMPANY

APPELLEES

#### CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

The undersigned counsel of record certifies that the following listed persons have an interest in the outcome of the case. These representations are made in order that the Mississippi Supreme Court may evaluate possible recusal or disqualification:

1. Tequila Thomas, Vicksburg, Mississippi

Appellant

2. Anthony Jones; MDOC Perchman, Mississippi

Appellee

John C. Hall II, Esq.
 P.O. Box 119
 Jackson, MS 39205-0119

Counsel, Philadelphia Ins. Co.

4. Philadelphia Insurance Companies
One Bala Cynwood Plaza
Suite 100
Bala Cynwood, PA 19004

Appellee

5. Judge Frank Vollor
Warren County Circuit Court
P.O. Box 351
Vicksburg, MS 39181

Circuit Court Judge

6. SORIE S. TARAWALLY, Esq. P.O. Box 31027
JACKSON, MS 39286-1027

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

Respectfully Submitted, this 2

July, 2008.

By:

SORIE S. TARAWALLY, Esq. MISSISSIPPI BAR NUMBER: ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI

....

TEQUILA THOMAS

APPELLANT

v.

No. 2008-CA-00315

ANTHONY JONES PHILADELPHIA INSURANCE COMPANY

APPELLEES

# CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

The undersigned counsel of record certifies that the following listed persons have an interest in the outcome of the case. These representations are made in order that the Mississippi Supreme Court may evaluate possible recusal or disqualification:

1. Tequila Thomas, Vicksburg, Mississippi Appellant

2. Anthony Jones; MDOC Perchman, Mississippi

Appellee

- Counsel, Philadelphia Ins. Co. 3. John C. Hall II, Esq. P.O. Box 119 Jackson, MS 39205-0119
- 4. Philadelphia Insurance Companies One Bala Cynwood Plaza Suite 100 Bala Cynwood, PA 19004

Appellee

5. Judge Frank Vollor Warren County Circuit Court P.O. Box 351 Vicksburg, MS 39181

Circuit Court Judge

6. SORIE S. TARAWALLY, Esq. P.O. Box 31027 JACKSON, MS 39286-1027

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

Respectfully Submitted, this \_\_\_\_\_, July, 2008.

By:

SORIE S. TARAWALLY, Esq. MISSISSIPPI BAR NUMBER: ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT



# TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

# CASES:

<u>Celotex Corp. v. Catrett</u> , 477 U.S. 317, 323, 106 S.Ct. 2548, 91
L.Ed.2d 265 (1986)23
Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, Inc., 477 U.S. 242, 247. 48, 106 S.Ct.
2505, 91 L.Ed.2d 202 (1986)23
<u>Williams v. Adams</u> , 836 F.2d 958, 960 (5th Cir.1988)23
Rigby v. Sugar's Fitness & Activity Center, 803 So.2d 497 (Miss.
2002)23
Robinson and Robinson v. Ratliff and Johnson, 757 So.2d 1098
(Miss.Ct. App.1999)23
Spartan Foods Systems, Inc., v. American Nat'l Ins. Co., 582 So.2d
399, 402 (Miss.1991)23
Douglass v. United Servs. Auto Ass'n, 79 F.3d 1415, 1429 (5th
Cir.1996)23
<u>Cole v. Buckner</u> , 819 So.2d 527, 530 (Miss. 2002)23
<u>City of Jackson v. Presley</u> , 942 So.2d 777, 780 (Miss. 2006)23
<pre>Price v. Purdue Pharma Co., 920 So.2d 479, 483 (Miss.2006)24, 30</pre>
American Legion Ladnier Post No. 42 v. Ocean Springs, 562 So.2d
103, 106 (Miss.1990)
Green v. Allendale Planting Co., 954 So.2d 2007 (Miss. 2007)24
Bowie v. Montfort Jones Mem'l Hosp., 861 So.2d 1037, 1042
(Miss.2003)25
Thompson v. Patino, 784 So.2d 220, 223-24 (Miss.2001)26

<u>Guar. Nat'l Ins. Co. v. Pittman</u> , 501 So.2d 377, 387-88
(Miss.1987))
Chassaniol v. Bank of Kilmichael,
626 So.2d 127, 135 (Miss.1993)26
Guar. Nat'l Ins. Co. v. Pittman,
501 So.2d 377, 387-88 (Miss.1987)26
Progressive Casualty Ins. Co. v. Keys,
317 So. 2d 396, 398 (Miss. 1975)27
<u>Polk v. Sexton</u> , 613 So. 2d 841, 845 (Miss. 1993)27
Tideway Oil Programs, Inc. v. Serio,
431 So. 2d 454, 465-66 (Miss. 1983)27
Standard Life Ins. Co. v. Veal,
514 So. 2d 239, 247 (Miss. 1977)27
Life & Casualty Ins. Co. v. Bristow,
529 So. 2d 620, 622 (Miss. 1988)27
Aetna Casualty & Sur. Co. v. Day,
487 So. 2d 830, 832 (Miss.1986)28
State Farm Fire and Casualty Co. v. Simpson,
477 So. 2d 242, 250, 252 (Miss.1985)28
Larr v. Minnesota Mutual Life Ins. Co.,
924 F.2d 65, 67 (5 <sup>th</sup> Cir. 1991)28
Guy v. Commonwealth Life Insurance Co.,
894 F.2d 1407 (5 <sup>th</sup> Cir. 1990)
Peel v. American Fidelity Assurance Co.,

680 F.2d 374, 376 (5th Cir. 1982)28
Blue Cross & Blue Shield of Mississippi v. Campbell,
466 So. 2d 833, 851 (Miss. 1984)29
Andrew Jackson Life Ins. Co. v. Williams,
566 So.2d 1172, 1184 (Miss.1990)29
Pioneer Life Ins. Co. of Ill. v. Moss,
513 So.2d 927, 929 (Miss.1987)29

# STATEMENT OF ISSUES

- 1. THE ENTRY OF SUMMARY JUDGMENT BY THE TRIAL COURT WAS ERROR GIVEN THE POSTURE OF THE PROCEEDINGS.
- 2. THE ENTRY OF SUMMARY JUDGMENT AS A PUNITIVE MEASURE WAS UNDULY HARSH AND LESS DRACONIAN SANCTIONS WERE AVAILABLE TO THE COURT.
- 3. THE ENTRY OF SUMMARY JUDGMENT FORECLOSES AN INQUIRY INTO THE PROBABILITY OF ASSESSING PUNITIVE DAMAGES AGAINST THE APPELLEES.

# STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Ms. Tequelia Tavert Thomas ["Ms. Thomas"] was employed by Five County Child Development Program, Inc. ["Five County"]. Five County has a fleet of automobiles for which it procured automobile liability insurance from Philadelphia Insurance Companies ["PIC"]. Five County provided Ms. Thomas an insured automobile that she keeps and uses seven days a week, twenty-four hours a day. September 7, 2003, Ms. Thomas's vehicle was hijacked by defendant Anthony Jones as she was in the process of entering the vehicle to go and pick up one of her employer's clients who was getting off work earlier than scheduled from one of the casinos operating in Vicksburg, Mississippi. Resulting from this hijacking kidnaping incident, Ms. Thomas sustained numerous debilitating injuries. She filed a claim for workers compensation benefits under our MWCC laws which claim was contested by Employer and its Carrier; she was denied benefits by the Commission and affirmed by Judge Vollor, sitting as the presiding and appellate judge of the Circuit Court of Warren County, Mississippi. See: Thomas v. Five County and Commerce and Industry Insurance Company, Circuit Court of Warren County, Mississippi; #2005-0294-CI. See also Thomas v. Five County and Commerce and Industry Insurance Company, Ms. Sup. Ct. Docket No. 2006-TS-00121 (2006-WC-00121-COA) [Mississippi Appeals Court reversed a dismissal by Judge Vollor of Appellant's Workers Compensation case].

On September 6<sup>th</sup>, 2006, Tequelia filed a complaint against the uninsured hijacker, Anthony Jones, and the automobile liability insurer, Philadelphia Insurance Company. This was followed by an amended complaint filed on September 20, 2006 and served on each defendant. The amended complaint alleged Breach of Contract/Unfair Claims Handling Practices/Bad Faith against PIC and Negligence against Jones. On October 12, 2006, defendant Anthony Jones filed his request for Admissions propounded to Ms. Thomas. On or about October 25, 2006, PIC filed its Answer, Affirmative Defenses and a Motion to Stay. From October to December 2006, pleadings and responses were filed by Jones and the Plaintiff in this Circuit Court Proceedings.

Meanwhile, from January to April, 2007, Plaintiff and PIC litigated PIC's Declaratory Judgment Action in federal court. This action was dismissed by the federal court on May 31<sup>st</sup>, 2007. In spite of PIC's motion to stay the state court action and its initiation of litigation on the issue of coverage in federal court in its Declaratory action, the circuit court entered a Scheduling Order in April 2006 and the parties commenced or continued discovery. PIC deposed Ms. Thomas. Counsels for PIC and Ms. Thomas engaged in discussions to conduct a 30(b)(6) deposition of a PIC designated representative. Counsel for PIC, upon being given the parameters of the deposition could still not designate a deponent. Counsel for Ms. Thomas as agreed between he and counsel for PIC

filed a Notice of Deposition styled Re-Notice of Deposition in the docket entry. This notice as agreed upon between counsels left blank the identity of the deponent to allow counsel for PIC to designate the deponent and the date of the deposition open as counsels contemplated a deposition to be taken in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Both counsels further discussed the necessity to extend the discovery period beyond that prescribed in the scheduling order.

On October 16th, 2007, without having the 30(b)(6) deposition, PIC filed its motion for summary judgment and served it only on Ms. Thomas. On November 7, 2007, PIC filed its Notice of Hearing and this was received by Ms. Thomas' attorney on the 12th November, 2007, as he was leaving for an emergency trip to Freetown, Sierra Leone, West Africa. Counsel for Ms. Thomas immediately called PIC's counsel to advise him of his unavailability and faxed him a notation to that effect on PIC counsel's letter and Notice. result of this fax and telephone call, counsel for PIC via his assistant in his office assured counsel for MS. Thomas that the hearing would be rescheduled. In spite of this assurance, counsel for PIC wrote a letter with an "Agreed Order of Dismissal" to the presiding judge on November 16, 2007; in this letter he pursued a ruling on his motion without informing the court of his prior contacts with Ms. Thomas' counsel nor to even advise the court that counsel for Ms. Thomas was out of the country. We further note

here that the noticed hearing was indeed cancelled.

The Court, this writer assumes, being unaware of counsel's absence and presented with a fact scenario of just unresponsiveness by counsel for Ms. Thomas wrote a letter dated November 20th, 2007, to Ms. Thomas' counsel that required a response by December 4th, 2007; as it turned out, this deadline was a day before counsel's return on the evening of December 5th, 2007. Counsel for Ms. Thomas on his return and discovery of the deadline letter from Judge Vollor, immediately sent a letter, via facsimile, to the Court advising it of his absence and return and asking for fifteen additional (15) days to file a response. The Court responded via a note scribbled on the letter that the request was not in a proper (motion) form. [Rec. at 174].

On 6<sup>th</sup> December, 2007, the Court signed an order dismissing the case because of Plaintiff's failure to respond. This order was entered on the 7<sup>th</sup>, December, 2007. On December 10<sup>th</sup>, 2007, unaware of the entry of the order, counsel for Ms. Thomas filed her Motion to Compel Discovery, Deny or Stay Motion for Summary Judgement with exhibits attached to support her contentions. This motion was never ruled upon by the Court. On December 17<sup>th</sup>, 2007, Ms. Thomas now being aware of the Court's entry of the order of dismissal filed her motion to set aside the Order of Dismissal which was denied. Feeling aggrieved, Ms. Thomas, appellant herein, files this appeal.

The entry of summary judgment is premature, arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion and was pursued by counsel for PIC without disclosing to the court all the facts and circumstances surrounding the case and its progress. Counsel for PIC was less than forthcoming in giving ful information to the Court in its pursuit of the summary judgment motion and order, especially as it cancelled the noticed hearing but then sent a letter the day after seeking the entry of summary judgment without apprizing the court of all pertinent facts, to-wit, counsel's absence from the country.

1

#### STATEMENT OF FACTS

I

The incident at the basis of this suit occurred on September 7, 2003. On that day, Ms. Thomas was about to enter into her employer provided automobile and insured by PIC when she was accosted by Anthony Jones, a former boyfriend. Anthony Jones pulled a gun and pointed it to her head, grabbed the keys from her as she was opening the driver side door, opened the door and shoved her into the vehicle and attempted to drive off with her. She fought for her freedom and a struggle ensured. She was able to free herself from Jones and jumped out of the moving vehicle. Jones drove over her prostrate body as he made his getaway from the scene of the carjack and attempted kidnap. Anthony Jones is presently serving fifty-three year sentence at Parchman for his crimes that day.

Five County provided to Ms. Thomas the vehicle, seven days a week, twenty-four hours per day. As we say it in our colloquial expressions, "twenty-four seven," meaning twenty-four hours a day and seven days a week, at all times. That vehicle was insured with PIC. See Commercial Lines Policy Common Policy Declaration, attached to the Amended Complaint and also an exhibit in PIC's Motion for Summary Judgment.

On September 7, 2003, Ms. Thomas received a call from her charge for that day to pick her up from the casino where she had

earlier dropped her off for work as she was getting off work earlier than scheduled. She was attempting to enter into the vehicle provided for her by Five County, and insured by PIC when Jones struck. Jones put a gun to her head, took the keys from her, shoved Ms. Thomas into the vehicle and took control of the insured vehicle without her permission. She struggled with him, fought him off and was successful in freeing herself. She jumped out of the moving vehicle and Jones even ran over her with the vehicle. Ms. Thomas was badly injured. See Exhibit 4 at 10, 11, 13, and 15; Plaintiff's Motion to Compel Discovery, Deny or Stay motion for Summary Judgment. [Rec. at 169-71].

It is important to re-state that this is an automobile liability case and PIC is the insurer for auto liability, comprehensive, uninsured and medical coverage that arise from the use and operation of the insured vehicle. Ms. Thomas is an insured under the policy [under the policy definitions of "insured"] because she was entrusted with the vehicle seven days a week and twenty-four hours a day to use as she deems fit, including the employer's purposes for which employer would provide gas and pay her for her time. On personal uses, she would buy her own gas. But she would not be paid for that time.

So even if she was on a pleasure trip or a private errand, her employer would not pay her for her time nor provide gasoline, but it it is immaterial to the coverage on the vehicle. In a nutshell, where she was going and what she was doing is immaterial as long as it was not a criminal venture. She was at all times a permissive user and as such an insured. The operator of the vehicle at the time of her injury - Anthony Jones - was not a permissive user. Therefore, he was not insured. The insurance policy clearly states this under exclusions. He caused her the injury and compensation is due under the policy coverage. See *Policy of Insurance* attached to PIC's *Motion for Summary Judgment*.

There were discussions between Ms. Thomas and PIC on the scope of coverage and the benefits due her. But these discussions were not satisfactory. The medical benefits due an insured may have been paid by the insurer or offered to be paid. But we are faced bills hundred with medical  $\alpha f$ over two thousand dollars (\$200,000.00) or more as against a liability cap of five thousand dollars (\$5000.00) in the policy. Their offer to pay her medical bills to the limits of the cap rang shallow.

This law suit followed, and the Amended Complaint was filed on September 20, 2006. [Rec. at 5-8]. The defendants are Anthony Jones and PIC, as the uninsured motorist carrier. We have in the Statement of the Case provided a narrative of events during this

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Thomas timely filed a claim under the workers compensation laws and that claimed was denied by the Commission and dismissed by Circuit judge Vollor which dismissal was reversed by the Court of Appeals and upon remand the case was gain dismissed by Circuit judge Vollor. This dismissal was entered on December 10, 2007, three days after the dismissal of the negligence and bad faith claim.

period and in the interests of brevity, a reprise here is not necessary. But we add here an exchange between counsels for Thomas and PIC via e-mail in August 2007 on the need for the 30(b)(6) deposition.

Sorie: John, I am waiting for your response. I am also contemplating a motion of recusal of Judge Vollor.

Hall: Hello Sorie. I have been out of the office. At any rate, I am working on a Motion for Summary Jmt. and hope to have it filed early next week. I suggest holding off on making plans to go to Philadelphia until we get a ruling. What do you think? I will probably oppose a motion to recuse Judge Vollor.

Sorie: John: I am laughing here and hard; you want to file a motion to kill my case but I should hold up on discovery to buttress my case until there is a ruling on your kill motion. I am laughing all the way to the poor house. Look, your client insured a vehicle and my client suffered a loss during the operation and use of the vehicle. This is not the MWCC case and i(sic) have to admit that my client gave testimony that kills her MWCC case during the deposition but she told me she was confused; her deposition testimony if allowed to stand kills the MWCC case theory but I am not trying a MWCC case with you. Our case with Philadelphia is a coverage question and Ms. Thomas could be headed to the whore house in the vehicle, she is covered. client needs money and the cost of settlement day Philadelphia increases every holds Coverage in this case should not have been denied as there is a plethora of cases dealing with getting into and alighting from a covered vehicle. I need to schedule the deposition because of the scheduling order. See also Plaintiff's counsel's letter to PIC dated September 20, 2007 and an exhibit numbered 1 attached to Motion to Compel Discovery, Deny orStay Motion for Summary Judgment. [Rec. at 175].

It was in the midst of this exchange that counsel for PIC filed his Motion for Summary Judgment on October 16, 2007, but after Plaintiff's counsel had filed his notice to do the 30(b)(6) deposition of the corporate designee. Instead of agreeing to setting and doing the deposition of the corporate designee, counsel proceeded on his course to pursue his summary judgment objective, and especially at a time when he knew that counsel was out of the country. This is what was alluded to in the telephone messages left on November 12<sup>th</sup>, 2007 and the letter and notice of hearing received that day and responses faxed to the court and counsel for PIC.

II

In November 2007, counsel for Ms. Thomas had to leave for an emergency trip to Sierra Leone. This information was posted on the LISTSERV to which both counsels belong. Counsel's trip was posted to cover a period from the end of the first week in November to its end. Counsel for PIC without any prior notice or consultation nor agreement from counsel for Thomas set his motion for summary judgment in the middle of November, November 15<sup>th</sup>, 2007, a time known to counsel that counsel opposite was absent or would be absent from the country. As fate would have it, counsel's Notice of Hearing and Letter to Circuit Clerk arrived at departing counsel's office as he was leaving on the 12<sup>th</sup> to catch a plane from Jackson to Baltimore, on the first leg of his journey. He

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