\mathcal{B} -CA- ∞ 315

The undersigned counsel of record certifies that the following persons listed have an interest in the outcome of this case. These representations are made in order that the Justices of this Court may evaluate possible disqualifications or recusal.

Appellee

(1) Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company, incorrectly referred to as Philadelphia Insurance Company

Counsel for Appellee

- (2) John C., Hall, II, Esquire
- (3) Shunda L. Pounders, Esquire
- Brunini, Grantham, Grower & Hewes, PLLC
 248 East Capitol Street
 Suite 1400
 Jackson, Mississippi 39201

Appellant

(5) Tequila T. Thomas

Counsel for Appellant and Cross-Appellee

(6) Sorie Tarawally, Esq.

I.	Statement of the Issues		
П.	Summary of the Argument		
III.	Statem	ent of the Case and Statement of the Facts	
-	A.	Procedural History	
	B.	PIIC Uninsured Motorist Policy Provisions	
	C.	Facts Giving Rise to this Action	
IV.	Argument		
	A.	Standard of Review	
	В.	Summary Judgment was Appropriate as Plaintiff Is Not Entitled to UM Coverage Because She Was Not an Insured Under the PIIC Policy	
	C.	The Circuit Court's Refusal to Set Aside its Order to Dismiss PIIC was not in Error	
V.	Conclusion		
Certifi	cate of a	Service	

00503967

.

z

4

2

ī,

TABLE OF CASES & OTHER AUTHORITIES

Alfa Ins. Corp. v. Ryals ex rel. Wrongful Death Beneficiaries of Ryals, 918 So.2d 1260 (Miss.2005)
Alfa Ins. Corp. v. Ryals ex rel. Wrongful Death Beneficiaries of Ryals, 918 So.2d 1260 (Miss.2005)
Busby v. Mazzeo, 929 So.2d 369 (Miss.Ct.App.2006)
Coleman v. Sanford, 521 So.2d 876 (Miss.1988)16-
Estate of Brown ex rel Brown v. Pearl River Valley Opportunity, Inc., 627 So.2d 308 (Miss.1993)
Foster v. Noel, 715 So.2d 174, 180(¶ 35) (Miss.1998)
Gov't Employees Ins. Co. v. Brown, 446 So.2d 1002, (Miss.1984)
In re Estate of Ware, 573 So.2d 773 (Miss.1990)10-
In re Will of Smith, 910 So.2d 562 (Miss.2005)10-
Johnson v. Auto-Owners Ins. Co., 2005 WL 124078 (Ohio App. 11 Dist.2005)
L.T. ex rel. Hollins v. City of Jackson, 145 F.Supp.2d 750, (S.D.Miss.2000)12-
Lewis v. Allstate Ins. Co., 730 So.2d 65 (Miss.1998)
Lujan v. Nat'l Wildlife Fed'n, 497 U.S. 871, 895-97, 110 S.Ct. 3177, 111 L.Ed.2d 695 (1990)
<i>Maxwell v. Baptist Memorial Hospital-DeSoto, Inc.</i> , So.2d, 2008 WL 2170726 (Miss.App.2008.)
Miss. Farm Bureau Mut. Ins. Co. v. Jones, 754 So.2d 1203 (Miss.2000)17-
Morton v. City of Shelby, 984 So.2d 323, (Miss.Ct. App.2007)8-
Norman v. Estate of Keller, 2005 WL 940857 (Ohio App. 11 Dist. 2005)13-
Otts v. Lynn, 955 So.2d 934 (Miss.App., 2007)12-

r :

:

÷ -

.

¢.

-

- -

Progressive Cas. Ins. Co. v. Yodice , 180 Misc.2d 863, 694 N.Y.S.2d 281, 283-84 (N.Y.Sup.Ct.1999), aff'd, 276 A.D.2d 540, 714 N.Y.S.2d 715 (2000)
Richardson v. APAC-Mississippi, Inc. , 631 So.2d 143, 147 (Miss.1994)9-
<i>Roberts v. Grisham</i> , 487 So.2d 836 (Miss.1986)16-
Seedkem South, Inc. v. Lee, 391 So.2d 990, (Miss.1980)
Smith v. Smith, 656 So.2d 1143, (Miss.1995)13-
Spradlin v. Atlanta Cas. Co., 650 So.2d 1389 (Miss.1995)16-
<i>Stallworth v. Sanford</i> , 921 So.2d 340 (Miss.2006)10-
United Services Auto. Ass'n v. Shell, 698 So.2d 96 (Miss., 1997)16-
Statutes
<i>Miss.Code Ann.</i> § 83-11-103(b) (1999)11-
Rules <i>M.R.C.P.</i> 6(b)
<i>M.R.C.P.</i> 56(c)
<i>M.R.C.P.</i> 56(e)
<i>M.R.C.P.</i> 60(b)

;

I. STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

A. SUMMARY JUDGMENT WAS APPROPRIATE AS PLAINTIFF FAILED TO PROVIDE SIGNIFICANT PROBATIVE EVIDENCE SHOWING THAT THERE IS A GENUINE ISSUE OF MATERIAL FACT FOR TRIAL

- 1. Thomas Is Not Entitled to UM Coverage Because She Was Not an Insured Under the PIIC Policy;
- 2. Thomas Was Not "Occupying" a Covered Vehicle at the Time of Her Injuries;
- 3. Thomas Was Not "Using" The Covered Vehicle and Cannot Enjoy UM Benefits;
- 4. Thomas Is Specifically Excluded from Benefits under the Philadelphia Policy

B. THE CIRCUIT COURT'S REFUSAL TO SET ASIDE ITS ORDER TO DISMISS PIIC WAS NOT IN ERROR.

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Appellant, Tequila T. Thomas ("Thomas") appealed the Orderof Dismissal of the Honorable Frank G. Vollor ("Judge Vollor"), dated December 6, 2007 ("Judge Vollor's Order") (R. At 168). In this case, Thomas alleges she is entitled to uninsured motorist benefits as a result of injuries she sustained while operating her employer's vehicle without their permission. The record and the law in the state of Mississippi are clear. To begin, the Thomas never offered any responsive pleading or supporting affidavits or other sworn testimony in opposition to PIIC's Motion for Summary Judgment. As a result, no genuine issues of material fact are present in the record below. Notwithstanding, Plaintiff is not entitled to UM coverage under her employer's commercial automobile insurance policy because she was not an uninsured under the PIIC policy and because she was specifically excluded from being covered under the PIIC policy. Appellant incorrectly attempts to stretch the terms of UM coverage to extend to Thomas, even going so far as to argue that coverage exists if she were "headed to the whorehouse in the vehicle." (See Appellant's Brief at p. 16, paragraph 4, line 14). Moreover, Appellant's argument that the lower court granted summary judgment as a way of punishing the Plaintiff for not timely filing her response to PIIC's Motion for Summary Judgment is patently false. The Order of Dismissal specifically states that the court considered the Motion, and then decided to dismiss the case. Furthermore, Appellant's Statement of the Case is devoid of any factual support and must be disregarded.

ĩ

-3-

A. <u>Procedural History</u>

PIIC filed its Motion for Summary Judgment on October 15, 2007 and Plaintiff's response was due on October 29, 2007.¹ (R. at 109) PIIC's notice of hearing for its Motion was subsequently filed on November 5, 2007. (R at 107). Seven days later, on November 12, 2007, Plaintiff's counsel faxed a handwritten note to defense counsel advising of his unavailability. (R. at 125). Specifically, the note stated "... I will be out of the country as you should learned on the Magbar List Serve. ..."² Id. On November 16, 2007, PIIC advised the lower court that Plaintiff had not offered any proof to defeat summary judgment and enclosed an Order Granting Summary Judgment for the Court's review and execution. (R. At 172). Plaintiff's counsel was noticed on that correspondence. Id. On November 20, 2007, the lower court faxed a notice to Plaintiff's counsel giving him until December 4, 2007, to respond to PIIC's Motion. (R. At. 163, 168). It is undisputed that Plaintiff's counsel never advised PIIC's counsel when he would return, nor did he ask for an extension of time to file a response. It is further undisputed that Plaintiff's counsel never filed a pleading requesting an enlargement of time from the lower court to file a response to Defendant's Motion for Summary Judgment. The lower court's December 4, 2007 deadline was ignored by Thomas' attorney and the Circuit Court entered its Order of Dismissal, dismissing PIIC on December 7, 2007 (R. At 168).

¹URCCC 4.03 provides, "In circuit court a memorandum of authorities in support of any motion to dismiss or for summary judgment shall be mailed to the judge presiding over the action at the time that the motion is filed. Respondent shall reply within ten (10) days after service of movant's memorandum."

²The Magnolia Bar Association maintains a listserve which allows for the posting and dissemination of information among its members. Appellant's counsel and undersigned Appellee's counsel are both members of the Magnolia Bar Association with access to this listerve. However, this listserve has never been an accepted manner of communicating about the instant litigation between counsel of record and undersigned counsel did not see any posting by counsel opposite relating to his travel plans prior to noticing the Motion for hearing.

B. <u>Philadelphia Insurance Company Uninsured Motorist Policy Provisions</u>

On or about October 1, 2002, Philadelphia issued Commercial Lines Policy No. PHPK033615 to Five County Child Development (Five County) as the named insured (R at 26). The one (1) year policy period was from October 1, 2002 -October 1, 2003. (Id.) The uninsured motorist provisions of the policy define the following as insureds:

B. Who is Insured

- 1. If the Named Insured is designated in the Declarations as:
- a. The Named Insured and any "family members".

b. Anyone else "occupying" a covered "auto" or a temporary substitute for a covered "auto". The covered "auto" must be out of service because of its breakdown, repair, servicing, "loss" or destruction.

d. Any person who uses a covered "auto" with the Named Insured's expressed or implied consent.

(R at 60)

ж

The policy also lists certain individuals as being excluded from coverage under the policy:

C. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to:

- 1. Any claim settled with the owner or operator of the "uninsured motor vehicle" without our consent.
- 2. The direct or indirect benefit of any insurer or self-insurer under any workers' compensation, disability benefits or similar law.
- 3. Anyone using a vehicle without a reasonable belief that the person is entitled to do so. (Emphasis added).

*

-5-

⊻

(R at 61)

The policy further sets forth the following additional definitions:

F. Additional Definitions

As used in this endorsement: 1. "Family member" means a person related to an Individual Named Insured by blood, marriage or adoption who is a resident of such Named Insured's household, including a ward or foster child. 2. "Occupying" means in, upon, getting in, on, out or off. * *

(Id.)

C. Facts Giving Rise to This Action

Tequila Thomas was employed by the Five County Child Development Program as a transportation driver. Thomas was primarily responsible for transporting Five County clients to and from work from their homes. She was provided a Five County company vehicle for her job which was to be used exclusively for the fulfillment of her job duties for Five County. Five County had in effect at the time of the incident PIIC Commercial General Liability policy number PHPK033615 which also provided uninsured motorist coverage.

At approximately 2:00 p.m. on the afternoon of September 7, 2003, Thomas used her Five County vehicle to drop off a client at the Ameristar Casino in Vicksburg, Mississippi. She was to pick that client up from work to take her home at 10:30 p.m. or 11:00 p.m. later that night. Instead of returning home, Thomas drove her employer's vehicle to her mother's home to pass time while she waited to pick her client up. (R. At . 131). At approximately 6:00 p.m., Thomas set out to leave

i,

į.

• . .

As she attempted to enter her her mother's home to go to the store for her mother's friend.³ company vehicle, she was accosted by Anthony Jones who held a gun to her head. (Id. At 132, Line 8). Jones then took her keys from her and shoved her into the driver's door across the front seat to the passenger side of vehicle. (Id.). Jones got in the vehicle and then attempted to back the van from the driveway. (Id.) At some point, Thomas jumped out of the passenger side and attempted to flee the vehicle. (Id.). She then ran up to another vehicle and attempted to gain entry into that vehicle to escape Jones. (Id at 133). The occupants of the other vehicle locked their doors and drove away. (Id.) Thomas then tried to run away, but she unfortunately was struck by the Five County At the time of the accident, Thomas by her own vehicle driven by Jones. (Id. at 134.). admission did not have a right to use the Five County vehicle.⁴ Moreover, she was struck by the vehicle several yards away from the point where she exited the vehicle, and was in fact attempting to enter another vehicle around the time she was ultimately struck. Thus, she was not "occupying" an insured vehicle at the time of her injuries. Finally, the Five County vehicle was not in "use" as a vehicle at the time of the accident to trigger UM benefits. To the contrary, the Five County vehicle was merely the situs of a crime and was being utilized as a weapon rather than a vehicle when Thomas sustained her injuries. The facts applied to the law in this state do not allow Thomas to recover under the UM portion of the Philadelphia policy.

į

4

ł

³Thomas offers two versions of the purpose of her trip. In her deposition in this action, she testified that she was running a personal errand for her mother's friend. That transcript is attached as Exhibit B to PIIC's Motion for Summary Judgment in the lower court file.

⁴See deposition transcript attached as Exhibit B to PIIC's Motion for Summary Judgment in lower court.

IV. ARGUMENT

A. STANDARD OF REVIEW

When reviewing a trial court's grant of summary judgment, this Court applies a de novo standard of review. Busby v. Mazzeo, 929 So.2d 369, 372(¶ 8) (Miss.Ct.App.2006), Rule 56(c) of the Mississippi Rules of Civil Procedure provides that summary judgment is proper where "the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law." When considering a motion for summary judgment, the deciding court must view all evidence in a light most favorable to the non-moving party. Busby, 929 So.2d at 372(¶ 8). "Only when the moving party has met its burden by demonstrating that there are no genuine issues of material fact in existence should summary judgment be granted." Morton v. Citv of Shelby, 984 So.2d 323, 329 (¶10) (Miss.Ct. App.2007). When the moving party has satisfied its burden of proving that no genuine issue of material fact exits, the responding party must rebut by producing "significant probative evidence" showing that there is a genuine issue of material fact for trial. Foster v. Noel, 715 So.2d 174, 180(¶35) (Miss.1998). "When a motion for summary judgment is made and supported as provided in this rule, an adverse party may not rest upon the mere allegations or denials of his pleadings, but his response, by affidavits or as otherwise provided in this rule, must set forth specific facts showing that there is a genuine issue for trial. If he does not so respond, summary judgment, if appropriate, shall be entered against him." M.R.C.P. 56(e).

B. SUMMARY JUDGMENT WAS APPROPRIATE AS PLAINTIFF FAILED TO PROVIDE SIGNIFICANT PROBATIVE EVIDENCE SHOWING THAT THERE IS A GENUINE ISSUE OF MATERIAL FACT FOR TRIAL

Summary Judgment was correct in this matter because the Plaintiff failed to file her responsive pleading to PIIC's Motion for Summary Judgment in a timely manner and because summary judgment was appropriate. The facts of this case are as follows: PIIC filed its Motion for Summary Judgment on October 15, 2007, making Thomas' response due on October 29, 2007. The October 29, 2007 deadline came and went without the filing of Plaintiff's response. PIIC's then filed its Notice of Hearing on November 5, 2007. (R at 104). Seven days later, on November 12, 2007, Plaintiff's counsel faxed a handwritten note to defense counsel advising of his unavailability. Yet, Plaintiff did not file her response. It is undisputed that Plaintiff's counsel never advised PIIC's counsel when he would return, nor did he ask for an extension to file his responsive pleading. It is further undisputed that Plaintiff's counsel never filed a pleading requesting an enlargement of time from the lower court to file a response to Defendant's Motion for Summary Judgment. In fact, the court wrote Thomas' attorney on November 20, 2007, giving him until December 4, 2007 to respond to PIIC's Motion. (R. At 163,168) That deadline passed, and the Circuit Court entered its Order of Dismissal, dismissing PIIC on December 7, 2007. (R. At 168).

Rule 6(b) of the Mississippi Rules of Civil Procedure applies to a case where the non-movant for summary judgment untimely serves affidavits on the opposing party. *Richardson v. APAC-Mississippi, Inc.*, 631 So.2d 143, 147 (Miss.1994) (citing *Lujan v. Nat'l Wildlife Fed'n*, 497 U.S. 871, 895-97, 110 S.Ct. 3177, 111 L.Ed.2d 695 (1990)). Rule 6(b) states:

When by these rules or by notice given thereunder or by order of court an act is required or allowed to be done at or within a specified time, the court for cause shown may at any time in its discretion (1) with or without motion or notice order the

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